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INTERVIEW #4

LOUISE KAWELD KAINA KELI  IHO OMALU
Interviewed by Melissa Kirkendall
January 9,1988

M: Is this seed the one you have told me about?

Ls Yes, that i1is Kaklioa. It comes like this one here, i1t comes
in red, it comes in off white, with those lines and grey. The
red is rare. When I was in the jewelry business in Honoclulu, and
I got this red ones from Molokai from a niece and nephew that
lives down 1n Falaupaps. So she sent me a few of that, smaller
than this.

M: These were Hawaiian Agates?

=2 Yes, like marbles. The kids in our days, the hays
especially, go collect these things, sort out the best ones, witnh
the better shape, and round shape ones, and use them. Make a
large ring and five or six of us and five of each put in the

center ring.

M: Each person uses five marbles?
B Yes, you put your five in the center small ring. Then you
Jan ken po, and see who goes first. The first one if he hits and

breaks the pile, then what is outside is what we gonna shoot.

M: Outside of the center ring ? There is a smaller ring inside
of the larger ring where all the marbles are?

1= Yes so anything in the big ring we try shoot them ocut of the
big ring and thoss are yours.

M: How would you tell each others marbles apart?

{es Well, they know, they have different marking, maybe littl=
yellow here or the shape is different, and there is some marking
here, brownish or gold. Some bigger, the healthy ones.
Fakalioca, Hawaiian agate.

M= Did you have a special name for that game?

[&= Gee I dont know, cause I wasn't interested in those things.
Another game that they use, you make a hole, another hole,
another hole, another, just big enough for that agate to go into.
1 don't know how far from the here to the goal, maybe couple
feet. To find ocut who 1s going to be first, then we shoot. and
whoever 1s closest to the hole, then you gonna be first. Sc you
start first, you shoot, if it goes in the puka, then you shoot
again, to the next puka, and if it doesn’'t go in then the next in
line goes. And there is a point for that.

1



s If you get em in the puka, than you get a point?
L: Yes, but when you get the end, and coming back I can hit your
agate cause I went through the point. YOu got to get through the

last puka, then you entitled to hit the other ocnes agate. And
there is another point on there also. There is a group here a
group theresa we gonna challenge. Teams, maybe five an a tzam.

We see whose team wins. And at one time we go out in  thisg Funa
area, keaau side.

l5 How as 2 group would vou go up there?
s Those i1n the group, the teachers would take us up.
M: An 1nter school type thing.

(55 Yes, and rark and Recreation, especially on the field day.
They had all these things, maybe you know, relay, Jump in the
bag.

M: How cften did you have a field day?

{&=2 Maybe once a vear. All the schoels in the Puns area, 1 dont
know if Kauaea took part, but Kalapana, kKapsho, Pahoa. Even when
I was 1in Pahoa, we had volleybalil team, baseball team, challenge
against Kapoho, Keaau, FKurtistown. The coach help with the
transpaortation.

M: When vou were a student at Kalapana school, did you go”

= No, the boys did, for field day. For girls only race. Sc
far to go, and the children from Kapaahu cculd not r=2hearse for
the field day, cause so far. Too far to go all the way home.

[ Did the Xapaahu folks get together with the Kaiapana folis®

jis Once a month, the FTA.

M: What about as a commuriity, for get togethers? Like the
Christmas party vcu mentioned, would the xsapaahu folks come to
that also?

e We would invite up there, the kalapana, Kaimu, Hapaahu. I+

they have a way then they would come, 1f there was some pamt an
the program, maybe somebody would ac pick them up, bring them
down hers, overnight with somebody., usually we do that.

iz What kirnd of cccasions would you have parties?
L: Christmas party, and Halloween, 1 know. Yeh. Some of the
teachers here, we have Halloween, we have bonfires., and we get to

make masks out of the brown bags.
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M: Was this mainly for the children?

L: Yeh, well, big kind children. (laughter) 0ld already. For
everybody. We have that.

M: And what would you do at your Halloween parties?

Jes we have singing, and we have some games, we have contests of

who had made the best mask. We have all of that. And then, 1¥
yeu can pick who is the person behind there.

M: Can you remember some of the games that yvou would play at the
Halloween party?

L: Well we would make a circle, and the building was bigger than

that, so we half it. In this empty area, sometimes we use this
for class, take turns. Then it was blocked by partition. About
three buildings, three classes to one teacher. So we had the

games like that. And all along the wall, whatever parents came
would be sitting. They had games in the middle and vyou go around
and like a tag game, aand touch or put the something there, and
then the other one run arocund until the music stop. That is one
of the games we play, I forget already the others.

M: So you had Halloween parties, Christmas parties...
L: Christmas parties sometimes the Catholics had. Everybody go
there.

M: The Protestants would go to the Christmas party too.

It Yeh. And if the Frotestants have, then they all come. And
the children have their program going on, and the big ones have
their program going on also. It all depends on the teacher who
1S going to run that, and she has a Santa Claus come arocund, and
all the children you here scream! And once we had it in the
church, and the Santa Claus came in up to the platform, came down
again, and up again, then tao the children, then over by the
Christmas tree and then he did his thing and gave all the kids
something, their gifts. But I tell you, how big they were, but
they cry, cause they see this thing. They don’'t see that often.
They were afraid when this big man, with the beard and the red
and white outfit.

M: Who played Santa Claus?

L: Usually i1t was the teacher, she play Santa Claus. The kids
don’'t know her cause she was disguised with the pillow, and the
belt and she had the boots also. Not every teacher. When we had
Japanese teacher, we didn't have much. Cause they didn't kind of
associate with the community. but you cannot help, maybe they re
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on their own kind of way. Their religion also not the same.
M: There were Japanese people that lived down here”

=2 No, but they have only the man that lives down here, and re
married or lived with this Hawaiian woman, and that was it, no
more children. Only Chinese.

M: Do you remember the name of the Japanesa?

2 Morimoto. The teacher, she lived down here. But that man I
was telling you about, he i1s Yamakami.

M: Married a2 kKalapana girl?
I=s Yeh.

M: What was hsr name?

Li=i [Mzi1lchil

M: Last nam=?

155 I don't know. Kimokea I think. And they live behind my
Grandmas housze. And 1in those days, its not like today, the
greenery, you could see right through to the next property, no
way was like this, the bushes. So vyou can see what they are
docing, not today, it is different. Soc this couple, what they dc
1 plant, +farming, and raise chickens, I don't know what they dc
with their eggs, but its a big farm, and I think they sell :t.

Mz In Kalapana™ Or somewhere else?

L: Yeh when ever the people in the community need eggs, they
know where to go, Yamakami. Eggs or chicken they go over there.
Every house raise chickens, I know we do, at least far cooking
purposes, and we raise pi1gs and we raise cows. But all that 488
acres of my fathers we raise cows, and whatever time to sell,
well we have somebody to corral the cows that 1s te sell, come
down to our yard and put them in, the men, th= ocuyers come down
with their truck and they just pick up what they want, put 1t on

the truck and they going. Gnd alss the pigs, the hogs, we raise
them.
M have heard that in 1922, an ash f2ll from the velcanc? Can

y;J éell me what happened?

je== I was kinda little too young, but I remember that.

i Did it k111 the animals?

jo= I don't bLnow. But I know that in those days my mother usecd
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to bleach our clothes on the outside on the grass, to get them
white. They didn’'t have clorox those days.

M: So she would lay them on the grass?

Lz Yeh she lay em on the grass, and maybe at night there is the
dew, and a little sprinkle of rain, and that helps clear out same
of the stains on there and when that thing happened, that thing
spread all over the yard, and =ven went intoc scme of the peouples
water tank. But I didn't hear of any that had damage. But 1
kriow when that happened, we heard a big loud socund up there. And
all that T know, I remember we look up where Pu'u 0°'c and l:ittle
more further, ashes all fly, just like that atomic mushroom. Yeh
big explosion, and that thing had spread I don‘t know how far.
Some of us went out there to collect those ashes.

s What did you use the ashes for”?

L: Oh just for souvenir, just keep em for scouvenir.
M: Did it leave a layer over all the ground cr...
tL: Just sprinkle, fine ash. Grey.

M: And your clothes?

L: Uh we gotta go scak all again in the water, they were all out
when 1t happened. Somehow, I don’'t know, we did not hang clothes
outside. Your clothes supposed to be in, under the. I don-t

know why, they never tell us. But I know <somehow, in the sarly
days, I don't know in what vyear, but we do not hang clothes
outside. In those days there was some evil, and jealousy sets
in. I+ I don't want you, and anything that belongs to you, then
I go pick up one of your garments, and curse and cuss and
everything, or whatever, and burn it, 1like what you call ho-us
pocus.

M= Is it like Kahuna®?

L: Something like that. And then vyou might get sick, or come
into an accident.

i So you would keep vour clothes inside.

l== Thats all what I heard, my mother said, “Don 't leave the
clothes out there, make sure its dry and in the house and if it
is not dry, well run a 1line in the house and dry in there.
Especially when you had babies. The innocents. So I did thaty
don’'t know for what reason, I don't qQuestion.

M= Did most of the other people do the same?



{=e Yes, and they usually do 1t [wash clothes] 1in the morning
early and throw 1t on the line and by ten o’'clock eleven o’'clock
most of the clothes are dry. They all have their own ways, but
most do 1t like that. The Bible say when Jesus came he made
everything new, and don’'t look back. What they did was, maybe i+
was proper {for that time, what we have today they didn’'t have in
those days. And we have more easier than then. We had to carry
the water, and now turn the faucet the water come out, flip the
switch, the 1light come on. In those days you had to go out g=at
the wood, stack 1t up 1n the cookhouse, its hot and something

like this here, you cook. And 1+ 1t rain, oh gosh, all the wood
1= wet.

Description of household layout.

L: My father did some cooking. When we came back from the
school, then already my father has cooked the ulu, cut it up and
cooked, and we have to go up this land of ours, we saddle the
donkey and go up there, and papayas of course, we go get papavas,
and there is a kind of trough that we put the papayas 1in. All
what you do is chop it up and throw it to the pigs. And of
course we buy those stuff from the store [grains and pellets] mix
it up and put it i1n the trough.

M: The ulu was for the pigs too?
L: We used 1t for the pigs, we used it for us. There was sao
much. Ulu, papaya, whatever we had, sometimes we had pumpkins.

Pumpkins they use it for go fishing also. Sweet potato.
M: In your old house, did you have outdoor cookhouse?

I=2 Y=2s, the kitchen for when we got little modern, in the new
house, but in the old house we had the o©ld iron stove, wcod
stove, and the kitchen was that. In the new house had kerosene
stove. But we don’'t cook too much on top this stove, we cook
out. You know why, because we cock our rice out there.

M: So you still had the outdoor cookhouse that you used?

=5 Yes, it was out here by the water tank, close by, we ga down
the steirs and into the cocokhouse. And our bathhouse, wash house
was right in the back here. [drawing going onl Raock the walls
of the cookhouse with iron roof. The door was this side cause
hardly any rain from that side. Lot of wind the other side.
Inside only the stove. And when we had to cocok our rice, or tha
main dish, we just set aside, it all depends on how hot the iron,
you just move the pot, so it will cook. We use the whole works.
Our house we had to eat meat, my father is very strict, he has to

have his meat, we have it three times. Monday, Wednesday and
Friday or Saturday. You know we didn’'t have icebox. And we
preserve our meat by salting 1t. Fish, we preserve fish by
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salting it and drying it, putbing: At Souts an Fhe siin: - Fich of
course, my father don't care tco much.

M: Most of the other families ate fish?

-: Yes, my father like his meat, his chicken, his pork, but pory
not toa . much. My father is not all Hawaiian. He 1s only eat
certain kind of fish. I notice my father g fanily eating den t
care for the dark fish, only white fish.

M: What would by a dark fish™

L: Aku, opelu, and ali.

M: What kind fish is light fish?

1B Moi, mullet, aholeshole, even akule was dark fish. Not much
fi1sh, he would eat maybe when it is fresh but other than that.
But we cdo, and my mother likes ficsh. And you know, wz eat on the

tablie, my father teach us all theses table manners, to my brother
and I, my brother don't care for that kind of a style, and sc my
mother, whenn my father eat like that, she don't eat with us on
the table, she sits down on the flcor.

Because she didn‘t want to do it that way, she wanted tc do
it the Hawailan way™

L: Her own Hawaiian way, she sat down there, and my brother usad
to s1t down there with her.

M Did that bother your father?

5= He accept that, it didn’'t bcther him, tnat she have toc cams
ip on the tapis. He never push it, if she don'* want, shie don 't
wWant

1 And you liked to sit at the table?

like it cause I know 1°'m going to learn. the table manners,
et

1E55 s
how to s the table.
Mz Where at the table did vour fatner sit?
L: At this end, and I sit over here.
M: Where would your mom and brother sit?

L: My mom sit over there if she sit at the table and my brother

A If they wanted to sit on the floor”?



i I¥+ they wanted to sit on the floor, then only my father and
me at the table. And my mom and brother ate over here. [points
to kitchenl If that was their way my father don’'t mind. And that
1s it. And when we had our meal, then after that we had coffee
or tea, and only then my brother will come up on the tabie to
have his coffee and tea, he always had tea, I had my caoffee. But
of course my father don’'t want us to drink coffee.

M: Who would prepare the meails?

== My father taught me how to cook, cause my father was a cook,
not for pay, but he volunteer sometimes for the church. At Haili
church they wused to have him and Mr. FKauhi, I remember that. We
live in Hilo before we maove over here, vyou know right where the
Hukilau is, across, that all owned by my Grandfather, he deeded
all to Brown, my oldest auntie, the oldest of my fathers sisters,
John Brown, and all from that corner there to Suisan, where that
is now was all owned by my Grandfather, and all this area here
they have houses, thats where we 1lived, and then my uncle and
another auntie, and the Brown’'s and then another uncle on this
side to the corner. So we live there and my father works, you
rnow before they have all this plantation strikes, and then they
use my +father, my brother was one of them, this kind special
palice that goes into the camps. On the Hilo side, Papaikou,
Fepeekeo,all that area, my father works that area, and then comes
hcme, and thats where we lived. I don't know how he goes about
being the cook, what he had learned there, whatever it is, after
. the strike was over, so we move to Kalapana to the old house.
Before, I know my mother used to cook on the wood stove we had,
and I used to remember sifting the flour. It came in big bags,
and every Saturday we used to bake bread, brown bread. Every
Saturday, my mother used to bake. I remember geing over there
and sifting the flour. This bread, we eat one loaf for two days.
We had five loaves, and that five locaves, each loaf was wrapped
into these big flour bags, and she wash it clean, then she wrap
that bread into that dishtowel. We had that kind of cupboard,
and the shelf is big. There 1s a drawer, and we bring it out and
she line up all this bread in this dishtowel lined up in this
drawer.

M: And 1t would stay fresh?

1] Yeh, and 1%t didn't mildew, you know what I mean, cause it was
in the sack.” And maybe cause of the flour, vyou know 1in thase
days they didn’'t have all these things like you know today. And
when came to this Saturday, oh, she gotta bake again. I thing we
Lake three times in that bag before we get another bag. And that
was quite and experience, [ know that. But I can say, my mother
don’'t know how to coock. She would rather have +fish, if she
doesn’'t have enough to satisfy her, she go down the beach, with
this kind of basket, almost like the wicker, we have 1t growing,
and she and her sister would use that and they make narrow, go up
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about this long [two feet] and that kind of a basket. Make
about two or three, take them to the besach and when the water
come up, where there is a little opening like this here, then you

put your basket there and you catch all these fishes. Fut all
these burlap bags along side so the fish can’'t go, and you push
all these fish, and everything coming 1in the basket. Early 1in

the morrning befare the sun come up.

s You scocop em up”

I=3 Yes, and w~hen you scoop em up the water goes and you sees all
the fistes 1n there jumping and veou pour them in the bucket. e
do that wmaybe two three times, ennugh, go home. Enough for that
dav.

Mz wWwhat kind fish would that be?

L: 0Oh, small baby manini, small moci1 fish, alaihi, and this other
ki1nd small little fishes. Take 1t home rub evervthing, scale 15ty
ctherwise, just wrap em in the ti leaf, and roast it on the
charcoal. You call that lawalu. Another way of roast fish, 1n

L R T, And oh the smell. Put sait, thats all what we dc. My
mother would rather have that, or 1if those other small little
nes, she just take out the guts and put a little salt and eat it
raw like that. GShe’'d rather have that. And the other kind cf a
fish, no more scales, those little small like this, and oh I tell
you, wh=n nighttime you go torch, you see that, you catch that.
But you watch out, over here they just fly out, they don’'t bite,
they 3just slippery, it shoot out. You have to be good. if you

gc with the net, you get em. There’'s som=2 other kind of limu
there scocop em up, they re in there, Oh thats goocd. Today,
cannot find that, nc more, the beach is not like what was, cause
our beaches 1is all sunk down, not sa much reof. Today the watar

just come right up.
M: Before you could go out kinda far?

L: Yes, today the water is so different, you cannot get nothing.
Eut like before, yes you can get. And not too many pecple., ail
th2se guys going down there, only going for fun, but in thaose
days, you don‘t go +for fun, you go for something to eat. Even
those Chinese families, they lsarn to do likae the Hawaiians.

M: They would fish the Hawaiian way?

L: Yes, and those kids, they would do their chores az hone and
we ail say we gonna meet certain place, they come down, they go
uncer the stone, they catch crab. When they go home, the parents
fi: 1t up and 1ts a meal and even that +ind fish, almost like
o’opu, like & bass, and it has a big head, almost looks like kind
of a whela, when the whale swallowed Jonah, sometimes brown
sometimes black, and they come big. They just luve that. Go
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right underneath the stone and catch it; put ik in the bucket.
The mother say eat with the rest. I tell vyou, those Chinese
kids, they learn. And all these kind shells we have under the
stone, they know thats good to eat, they get home.

M: So the Chinese got along good with the Hawailans?

L: The Lee’'s especially, and they are there until now. And the
Ho's and the Chun, there 1s one more cf them left and he is in
the hospital. Chun Fat. They used to live by the Catholic
Church.

i Those were three Chinese families...

lez= Get somemore but they Young, Chang, the Hawaiian boy was

adopted by the Chinese, thats the one that owned the stare
before.

M Was that the one vyou told me the story of when he got his
wife in China?

L: Yes thats the one. The daughter is in Hilo now. She married
a policeman before, he is retired now. That is where he got his
wife in China. He tells the story. This Hakka, she belong on a
higher class, and he played the mandolin, and you know, the wife
had I dont know how many sisters, six of them I think, and you
know they have the walls, and on top of that thats where they
live, and all the girls locking down at him and he is playing and
playing his mandolin, instrument, and the sisters come, and 1
don’'t know, cause they were so strict with them. But she jumped
down, and ran away, and they came to Hawaii.

M: He told ycou the story?
fes He told all the children, that is the stary af their 11 fe.

M: How did they happen to come to Kalapana®

== When they were in Hilo, or Honolulu, they adopted two twin
boy=, and kept them. They went tc  school. They went to Hilo,
and they came with them. Those two boys always come down Here

f1shing.
M: Were the boys older™

LEs The boys are older, Chinese boys. They come fishing, in
Faimu. They come with another Chinese family. And they catch
ulua. And I think one time they brought the father and he came
here, he knew who owns the area here, Mr. Lalakea, I think they
get hold of him and either lease aor something that whole area.
He came down and he built the house over there. And he used
cracker box for lumber. Yeh.
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M: The store was made of cracker box?
== There was no law in those days.
M: How big was the store”?

L: The store was built. ldescription on paper]
The sleeping house was cracker box, the store was lumber.

M: Can we talk about your genealogy?

Lz My father’'s mother was Maria Kalehulca, my father ‘s father
was Lord George Kaina, wait, his last name, he wasn't interested
1n his last name, so he cut it off. Lowe is supposed to be but

it is not registered. My Mother ‘s mothers name is Kaiulani
Waiwai, and her husband, "Fai 'kauna Waiwai. My Grandmother's
maiden name is Kahalehoe. FKawelc, is Kaiulani’'s mother. Kawelo

Kahalehoe.

51 Fahalehoe was a kKalapana family®

=8 No.

M: Where did she come from? [Kaiulanil

L: From originally Kaua“'i. Kaiulani ‘s parents. But you know
hcw when vyou travel. Kahalehoe comes from Hamakua Coast. When
she was little [Kaiulanil she didn’'t even get acguainted with

her parents. There was at that time, you know FPrincess Ka’ iulani
that lives in Waikiki at that time, they proclaim that they read
her deed, so my great grandmother here was called to go ta
Honolulu for the hearing, the reading of the deed. In Ainahau.
So whan they left here they went on the boat FKamamalu, and on the
way to Honolulu, right in the Alenuihaha channel, the boat was
sink down, so she lost her parents there. She was very young,
she didn’'t know her parents tco good. She was at that age of
21ght at that time, so her Auntie kept her.

M: Was her Auntie a Kalapana girl?

don’'t know how she came here, but I know she also lived in Hilo.
Then she moved over here, and my Grandfather was a Hawaiian
Teacher.

== No, I think she 1lived in Waipiao. So she was there, and I

M: He was the one who traveled by horse?

L: On the horse to way down this other place below volcano. His
earning, he went to teach twe schools there of these Hawaiian
children, and they pay him twentv—-five cents a day, each schaol.
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For fifty cents he went a 1long way. He saved that and built a
big house, three bedrooms on this side, and three on this side, a
iang veranda, and at that last bedroom, they had built almost
like a btridge, from here to there, this house is an clder house

than the one 1 showed vou. In the back of there is a house to
cook and a dining room, the table is long, and bigger than this,
{the picnic pavillion at HrBl. ~nd 1t was so  wide, that vou

could put two tables, but they uce this area for sleeping, move
this table there, then the food safe, and a table for tne coffee
grinder on this side. A low bench for your crocks, for youar pc1,
1t doesn’'t sour fast.

M: ©h, the crock was ceramic to teep it cool?

I=s Yes keep 1t cocl, and 1t dcoesn’'t come sour, not like taday,
you make and put aside and tomorrow it come sour already. But
not 1n thcse days. It has to almost pau, and then it comes socur.

Mz Soc your Grancfather had this cother house down the other oide
tcetore he married Kaiulani?

No, they were livina 1i1n the grass house before, then m-
dfather used to go to the schools, and my grandmother and
of the families go up to the mountain, and plant their taro.
y had trails to go up and each family goes up and digs their
a to plant the taro. And when we came, then my Grandmother
and Grandfather have only one boy and three daughters. My
mcthers brother, David Kahulilani Waiwai, Michal Mikala Waiwai,
but she married a Kama. And Deborah Kepola Waiwai 4h Tai. These
are her own children, not the hanai on=s. First David, then
Mikala, then my mother, then Kepaola.

T
0 ™
'}
=

=3

it

]
=

uw -

2
e

M: Then after these grew up she had hanail children?
-1 Yes, Kuulei1 Ah Tai Fa iai, and LDavid kawlika Kauhi.
She married Fa, ard then Lai. She divorced Fa. Lai 13 Chinese.

That i1s the genealogy an my mothers side.

M: Bid your father have brocthers and sistercs”

B Oh, plenty, but tooc long, I°'11 give you the next tims. There
1= Sesrge and Jeremiah and. ..
v i Big family, did they all live down here in Yalapana?
s As they grew they went om  their cwn, but were all raised
here.
M: But Lord George did not always stay down here?

No, up Yelcano, but the mother didn’t raise them. You know

2 has, he married another lady, bu: that lady didn’ 't produce

1‘_)
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children. Kahilihiwa, but no children, so the family, of the
first wife, they got together, and you know she not producing.
And 1 think my Grandfather was kind of high class in those days,
and the family started think, gotta have somebody from this here.
I guess the wife had agreed and this is a cousin to her, so when
he come back they just lie her over there, and of course she
produces all, but she didn't take care of the children, at least
that 1s what I understand, she didn't take care, Kahilihiwa, the
other one did. And that is what my father said. So they called
her the big Mother, kahilihiwa.

M: Do yvou remember her first name.

L: FKehukai I think. They don’'t know much aof the other one. ' She
stayed in the area, Fulama, and we were told, the big house was
here, the wife’'s family have house all around the big house, and
they have a big cookhouse that will feed all these other houses
here, and I don’'t know where she live, we weren’'t told, but she

takes care of all the children. But you know, he never takes her
out, either one. Even when he was in legislature. Sa, this kinc
teebe=-jeebee, my grandmother tells us, of course no one e2lse is
zoing to tell us but she would tell us, about him. At the time

they move from Fulama, where the Lee’'s place before, where the
flowers was blooming on  the wall, and my grandfather was here
with her, the other lady had died already, and out cf their last

",sibling came my auntie Helen, then they moved this side. My

grandfather was a judge at that time. He serves 1n the
legislature, and her brother, sort of on the kind Kahuna, I don‘t
know what kind word to use. But he is going out there, and they
have all these kind parties, in the legislature, and they are
afraid he might get tangled with somebody else. So they do this
kind of thing, that when he goes there, that he doesn’'t have any
passion for any woman.

s So her brother did that so he wouldn’'t have any other ladies?

 ERE Yes, words come back, because he enjocy wcmen, but you know,
he goes with them, but he has no knowledge of 1liking them. But
that was 1t, they wouldn't tell us but my Grandmother cn my
mother ‘s side would tell us all that. At that time, my
grandmother tells me and my sister whait my Grandfather was like.
And she said he is a very prominent man. and a gentleman, all the
kind words she used to describe, we feel kind of [laughterl] of
what was. Sc she told us all that. She tells us they have this
ind of a iraoning aof the collar of the shirt with the button on
the back, but she doesn’'t know. And her family, Maria's family
does all of the laundry, when my grandfather comes back [ ]
and that 1s to supply all of these families.

M: Sc her had to support two families, FKalehuloa folks and
Fahilihiwa?



55 Not Kalehuloca folks, but all Kahilihiwa, the married wife«
family. I think her family C 1.

M Did it bother the ¥ahilih:iwa folks that he took the second
wife?

iz No they didn't mind, the children were like the Fahilihiwes
any way because she raised tham.

o 1L How often did som2thing like that happen when maybe one womar
cold not have...

I don't know, not too often. The vamily just wanted him to
have children, because, on his side family, we only know little
bit. They belong on the Hamakua side. And o©on his mother we
know, she is higher, the blocdline on the ali’i, but that is ac
far as we know. And all the families that exist from that side
is that. But on hi1s fathers side.

M: His father was a foreigner? (Lord George Kaina’'s fatner]

r_
e

Yes, he came on the ship. Captain Byron. He was a captain.
M: And he married the ali’i girl”

1=3 No he didn’'t marrvy. In those days when, Russ Apple has a
nice journal of my Great grandfather Lord George Byrcn. You know
that Byron ledge 1n volcano was named after him, now the ledge
dropped I think. So we got all that background work from Ruscs
Apple. We brought him down to be our guest, and brought him all
around, frcm here to volcanco.

M So he came off the ship and met one ali‘i girl?

L: At that time was different, the ship that landed in Hilo bay,
it wasn't Hilo bay, was Byron Bay, after him, cause he came him
with the body of one of the BDueens of Hawaii. And I don't know
what made them bring him in, and then the story is so unique, in
that time, they wanted to get hold of the captain, of the ship
and 1nvite him to be in that gathering. Cne announcement that
the chief made, 30 all the community they built this grass hut,
and all was set up ready, and then they had invite the captain

and all on the boat to this bLig feast. They had them overnight,
and they chose out of so many girls to be i1in that group, that is
what they did in those days, and the highest percentage of royal

ware choser.
M: So your great grandmother was chosen?
{s Yes, was chesen, and when they left, well, there is the seed

that they thirow over here.
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M: Did he ever meet his father that you know of?

[ I wonder, I don't know. Every two years we have a reunion.
But I know my grandmother say he is a mean man, Lord George
Kaina. And the pulu factory was kind of important.

M: What do you know about the pulu factory?

=3 In those days the pulu was 1mportant, i1n these ferns, the
thing burst with this pulu, kind of like a cotton. At a certain
part of the vyear they harvest that in the mountain area, and
somebody cuts 1t, just 1like cotton, only 1t is brown, so they
pack it up and ship it to Germany and some other place. They use
1t for mattress, and stuffing the body, some kind of a thing, yocu
kriow, a dead body, they stuff it with medicine and pulu. Not
here, ather places. So they harvest that up there, so my
grandfather built a factory. Up in Veclcano. Two years ago they
had a hike to go up to that area with a guide of the National

Fark, a ranger. Some went. To the site where the foundations
are, and they said they saw the foundation, and they didn‘'t
destroy that. The rangers said it was the site of the puiu
factory that was there before the National Park took over that.
So they preserve that area. Some of the family went up there and
ate their lunch and have their imagination running wild how was
the factory look like. Then they came out of there, with the

ranger. They wanted to go ancother time but the weather did not
permit 1t.

M: Were they still harvesting pulu when you were a child?

=2 I don't think so, cause my grandfather had died. It was
interesting, cause from there, they pack all this pulu on the
animal=s, and took it wayv down in Kesauhou Bay, this side, and that

1s where from the pulu factory, on the animals and lcad it on the
boats and ship it out. And scmecne had said tney want to go down
there, but you won't see nothing down there. There was a wharf
down there that load up on the ship and went out.

M: Was thers a community living at Keauhou at that time?

= I don't think sao, very few.

M: And in the 19200°'s?

les No.

s Your Imaternall grandfather didn’'t go down Keauhou toc teach?

les No, I think Kealakomo. Was far encugh. He used to leave
home four o’'clock in the morning and he gets home seven o’‘clock
at night. And when he gets home, he just gets off tne horse, his
children will go unsaddle the horse, feed the horse, and check
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his feet, and they rotating the horse. Then another morning, he
get up the horse was ready. All what he do 15 get up saddle his
horse, go. Five days a week. And then my Grandmother would stay
home, either do something around the house, or in the afternoon,
she said, when the kids pau school, friday, they would all go up
the mountain. They had a shack up there they can stay up there.
And there are some families that live up there and some families

that live down here. FKalapana mauka. There is a Kaaukai family,
a Faheik: tamily, some more other family, they have their own
taro patches up there. So, 1¥ my grandmother and some other

family 1s wup there, then my parent, my mother, her sisters and
brothers, whoever 1is down this side, if they going up friday,
then Thursday, they go out catching crab. In the night. After
school, they just come home, pack up whatever, change their
clothes, everything 1s ready. Pack up what they went to the
beach for the mountain folks, and when they come back on the
Saturday, they come down with poi or taro, what ever it is for
down here. And if they went hunting up there, well, whatever
they have up there, they com= down with it. I guess they adjust
to that life. But other than that.

M: Did you like better staying in one place, or did vyou like
going up there some times yourself?

L Well, I went up, but my father used toc tell me, " you don’'t
belong up there going into the kind, you stay home, clean house

or do this or do that.” I never had tooc much time for clean the
patch to plant taro. I like to go, cause I like to ride the
animal, but mmy father tells me "no, no no you stay hcme, look

after the house, take care of the chickens and do what ever."
Okay, I stay home. And only by ryself, sometimes I love toc sew,
sometimes the things 1 cannot do when my mother stay, I go do.
Sometimes I get my own money by taking people up Hakuma cave, I
save my money. We used to make some runners, some bags, dinner
mats. The tourists come and they buy it and you can make up to
twenty dollars or over 1in that. When I get my money, then I go
Hilo, I buy my own material, and I see all these quilts, my
grandmother show me how. I stay home by myself and I sew and do
the 1roning, and make my own. By the time they come home, then I
put em all awav.

Ma: They didn’'t want you to do your sewing?

T Well only me, my mother is more on lauhala, my mother only
does mats, no knowledge of learning of doing other kind. Like my
grandmotner, I learn more from her, she teaches me to do all,
even the basket weaving, and the lauhala mat with four edges on
one mat, and that kind of mat is made on the white ones. We
usually boil 1t. My grandmother in their days, they made a fire,
and throw the lauhala cver the charcocal, then the both ends, and
dry 1t in the sun. But after that when came to my time, we learn
how to boil the water i1in the pot, sc we use outside fire, big tub
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with water, boil it up, when 1t is boiling stick the lauhala 1n.
0f course vyou have to work with gloves cause of the thorns, and
then when 1t goes in the water, use the edge first,put At an,
when 1t goes in it withers, easy to work. Ease it in, with a
stick of wood, press it down 1n the water, leave 1t there, andg
about every five ten minutes, pull i1t out, throw it out there. I
did that and it is much better that way, and then it comes white.
tater on vyou 1learn, vyou put some chemicals there, so much of
cloEok and I did too. It comes whiter. Then you dry it out in
the sunm and when the rain comes you take it in like this here.
if ycu have a room like a garage, vou just run the wire and pin
it an - the lina. When the sun comess out just throw it out. wWiren
it gets kypda lisktle odoy, gl G e My grandmother used tg
teach us a small little weave, and early in the morning when 4 ou
ele=pingc, you can hear the naiil.

M: What 1s she doging”

L: She weaves with the lacvhala, skinny kind cnes, and that *aind
1 ot for step on, only for sleep, that kind of mat.

M: 5o you had separate sliezping kind mats?

{2 Yes,{oniy for sleep and when you througih sieeping, you fold
it wup and put it up.\ Just liks how you fold t-=2 blanket. Thats
how flexiblie the lauhala, soft. So you put it all in the corner,
piled. (The lauhala that you pick up from the tree, dry, use it,
that is for on the floor. You walk con that. But those mats that
I am talking about is not be just stepping on. When wvou finisn
sleeping, you use that as covering. [And my grandmother said ycur
body i1s not suited for what the feet evervday going back zand
farth and back and farth, and you going sleep there, your skin is
nat touch. 5c you nave this mat.| When we gc hr=r house we get
about th-ee of those mats and she tell us goc roll it up, put wvour
pi1llow, arnd vyour blanket. And when you get up, fold up your
blanket, foid up this mat aisco, put it away. 'Today our kids just
step on the pillow, ch, in those days we annot  step on the
ni1llow, my grandma would tell wus 1like lock, your heag is
something high, and when you sit down on that pillow, vou
lowering your ow” head,"| and we did net catch or what she said.
Yocur head 15 high alright, vou treat your nhead as something that
no bcoy step an your head. and no body sit your hiead, as rtar
as where vou are laying vour head, yvour pillow, dons't sit on it.
Some people, their head is kapu. Us Hawaiians, w2 don t believe
in slapping the head. The head is something high. W= respect
our head. r 1 they slanp the head. I told them, my
carents, my grandpsrents, stop us, not to slagp the head because
the head 1s something high, like the kKing, not for vou to slap.

=

M= Did most of the Hawaiian families feel that way?
fes, 1f they did that wav was very ditterent. Bui I know,
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all their family, that’'s where they hit the child first, on the
head. Sometime you come with something wrong you hit, especially
over here on the temple. They always said not to hit there on
the head, it might go out 1like that. Some families there are,
don’'t like to hit the head, and I know we are one. You don 't
want nobody to slap your head, and when 1 see that, those kind do
that, I tell em, thats why you folks family come not all there,

cause you hit the head. When you do that 1t goes hard on that,
and maybe they run away in the bushes so many days, they need
inore food of thought. Maybe so. And then they come homs, and

then of course they are not going to come home, and gquilty like
that been away for a couple of days, and I think because of that,
there is some other things we don 't know.

M: Did you go up to the volcano when you were a child?

L: Yes, us folks would go there and just stand there and just
sit there and looking.

M:  You would drive there?

Iz we went with somebody that had car, kKeaau side all the way
up. Long drive. But there is only one time that we went up
there and we were told by my grandmother. She said when we go up

we were going to take some food for us, if there is anything
good, don’t say that this is ono, this is good, just eat. And
don‘t say something else, but as the years went by everything is
not like it was, before, up here you would say oh good, you would
see the fire. Before, my grandmother say, you can go if the fire
1s here, going down, they would bring those sacrafices, the pia,
chicken, certain kind of a thing, you go over there and just put
1t right in. But if your heart is not good, the thing just fly up
again. It throws back sometime to you, if your heart not all
there, and she said, when you want to do this kind, you have to
do with your heart, sc when you think of the Biblical days, that
15 what 1t is. You not supposed toc give a blemished animai, and
you doing it with a clean heart. And that 1is the same thing.
The only thing is if your not giving it with a goaod heart, that
thing riccchet back and you know it was your errocrs. If vyou put
1t raght an therpe, she just cover 1t right ug. Thats how we were
telidabut Tedidn: = osae 1t

M Dicd your grandmother go with you when you went up that time?

L: But ncot that time with the fire. FPeople before used to have
a trail, to go down to where the fire was, and then you come cut
again. You go down only for do that and then you come out again.
But not everybocdy go down. Yau gotta go down with the animal
because there is so much stuff to take down there. But we anly
go up there and 1look at the fire and all what she gives out,
actions form.
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Mz Lots of times you went?

f=2 Too far, cannot see eruption from down here, anly in the
crater, I never see anything like we have here. This is the
first time since they had it at Holei, in 1960 something. Thats
where I saw, we came cver and I saw it coming down. Everyday,
the cousins, we stay up there and just loock at 1t, and ther tired
com=2 home, ard 1f vyou have urge go up early in the morning, she
sti1il there flowing down. But in my days I didn’'t see this, this
first time [ see it coming down. Before only in the crater, and
whenever we have going up to the crater. Flenty people have cars
going up. I think the only one I saw down in kona, Ho' 'apulaa,
the one going down Miloli ‘i, thats the cne. We went over therea.
We see the thing coming down, the trees coming down, just like
waves, the fire. A lava flow going down, she catch the rocts
underneath there, all what you know, the back ans coming back,
vou see the trees going over. Just like the waves, aone
underneath, one on top, ancther one on top. Oh my. Can you
imagine 1f was a house? That 15 steep, fast go down. As she
coming up 1like this here, the rcad that going to Kona, if cames
out not toc bad, but when she falls down, oh gosh, it went fast,
you know mor2 the pressurz2 from  mauka coming down, pushing am
down, and sc was Holei was. And it last kind of pretty long
you know, at that time. 4nd I have a son came back from Viet
Nam, and vou remind him Viet Nam and everything, so the csister
told him come here and he forget all abaut Viet Nam when you see
all these different environments, instead of stay Honolulu. S0
«© was here aoout a year, and he became alright. And the father

put him to work and that motivate him. At that time he was here,
so this time when he came back, this is only tickle of fire
things. But as far as when I was small, we went up there only to
see the fire 1in the crater. It 1s so furny when vyou see it
flowing out of the crater. And that was the first flow I saw,
Ho 'opuloa, going to Miloli‘i. Was way back 1978 I thank, o 26,
We w@re there, that was something. Fienty pecple went there,

they had blockade, everyone gpark along the road, and you walk anc
look all these things. And there was an area, that a Chinese man
had a house. A#nd he just stayed in the house, but the fire just
went a-ound.

M: He had ti leaves or something?

-

I don't know, but they got him cut of there. The lava never
took his house. But they got him out. Maybe cause...l don’t
know, cannot say about it. OG0Oh gosh, tnat was something. When I
was 1n  HAanglulu, I never saw the Kapcho onse. Even the Kamali ',
I didn’'t see that, only that Holei aone 1 was herse already. And
we had the National Park 1in here tc remove. That was down
Fealakomo side, then came Keone cne, I was here for that cne, but
I didn't go up there to see, you could stay bv the Catholic
Church and see it coming. Then we had a meeting here, they told
us to remove things out of our church. My husband was so mad, we
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had the meeting here, and then a meeting of cur church group to
remove the books, especially the books, and all these important
things, so when I came back the car, my husband, I told him we
gotta go do the church. He said, oh no, if she wants to take the
church, that’'s her business, she take the church, we don’t go and

block there. He tell me, she 1s part of God, only if God love
his church, he spare his church, but i1f sche wants to take tne
church, thats her business. So I cannct say nothing. So we went
home, we go home and say a praver. I¥f God want to take Kalapana,
that 1s his business. But he didn t. She came about a mile and a
half from the church, she divert on the other end. So all the

pews were removed by the Civil Defense, without our permission,
and the rest, somebody remove, take up Leilani estates longhousze,
our pews up there. They brought the pews back, but they set it
back, 1t was not the right pew in the right position,; they should

have mark 1it. That pew, mark down, that pew, mark down. But
they were so 1n the rush, without saying toc any of the church
officials about 1it, they Jjust went remove it. Sa when they sit
up now, you sit on one end, the other end come up. They are
loose, cause they are not in the right place. My husband said,
that pew moves because it is not in the right place. Before they

tcok them out they did not move, but they didnt mark the chairs,
Or pews. I¥f they did that then we wouldn’'t have this problem.
But now 1t 1s better, I hope the next time they mark it.

M Maybe there won’'t be next time.

(B I know 1it, but because already it is coming taking some of
the areas 1n Kalapana Gardens, so it will come closer, no future.
I telling my kids, den’'t look for it, cause you might onlv he

safe, only for temporary, no future generations here.

L: [description of Waiwai housel So there’'s a parlor, a long
livingroom, for weave lauhala, or use 1t when the larger familwv
come in ancd there is a kitchen in the back.

All these rock walls were here, but it was dirt road, and all of
this to way over here was Kaina. I think my father planted these
ircnwood pine trees, all this was my fathers land, my bHrother
got 1t, sold toc this company.

M: Was it the usual thing te leave the land to the sons?
Lz Yes, thesy didn't leave it to the daughters. Ours, was tc the
two brothers, the sisters didn't get anything.

M: Was that the accustomed wav for all the Hawaiian families?

= Some, not all but.

M: Wasn't there something that when somebody was born, you would
plant a ceconut?

r)
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L= Yes, you would plant vyour child’'s piko under neath the
coconut tree, but I don’'t think every Hawaiian does that.

M: Do names have signifigance? And where do they come fram?

L= Yes, a place, or a name of a person, or maybe they are after

the [ 1] also. Or a fish or something.

Mz Did ycur parents give vyou your Hawaiian name, or did your

Grandmother . It all depends, sometimes 1t takes from my mothers

side and some from the fathers side, not all ane side. Kawelo 1s
. my grandmothers mother, that 1s her mothers name. " You see

! befare; in those days, sometimes the family, if the father names
the child, maybe the mothers family wanted that child to be named
on their side, and then the feelings of the person, it affects
the child, and then sometimes the child don't live. It troubles
the child.’

M= So they have to be careful where they take the name?

= Yes, it must be agreeable. Just like if we having a child,
before 1t is born,; if it is a girl, well, I bave a name, but i+
the other . side agree, that is fine. But i# vou say, if it is a
boy then it is mine, I don’'t want to agree, they must agree,
cause you are not supposed to argue, because 1t belongs to both
of us, our families. |

M: So the family would discuss it ahead of time?

L: Yes. Or sometimes it comes from the elderly. Then she or he
dreams that the child 1is going to come, and to be named, =5 vyou
know who is going to bear children, you ask, they tell you 1§f 1t
is a boy 1t 1s named so and so.

M: Did vour grandmother give dream names?
et Yes she did to my daughter. Loulse, because everybody was
Hilo. Since only <she and I, so I gave her to name the child. so
she didn’'t have a name right then, and she slept, and then the
followinag morning, she told me the names. So when my husband
came home, I told him I gave my Grandmother permissicn to name
the child. Sc he =said ckay. It was alright. But I named her
Lorraine, put 1t in the paper to go and register. He changed
that nam=2. He came home say he changed the name. I said why did
you change the name? He say, who is this Lorraine, I don’'t know
this Laorraine. I said its a name. Well, he charnged it to Louise.

M: Grandma Waiwal gave the Hawaiian name?

=z Yes, the Hawaiian name. Kaleinani:, she said Kalehua or
Faleinani. The 1lehua 1lei 1is Kaleinani. So we name her
FKaleinani, so all the people down here know her only as
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aleinani. Then Carol, the second girl.

M: Was Grandma still alive?

L: No, the second child was btoy, she past away. My third child
bay, then another boy and then a giri. Then my hushand ask me to
name her after his mother, I said ckay, [ I bukt - he-told

me you can name her nacle name. He wasn’'t interested in Englicsh
name, 1f I have any. Because she was born cn Christmas Eve, I
name her Carcl. GSc came a boy, 1 gave him, and the cne before 1
gave him, because 1 had dreamt. Right by this house, in my
dream, 1 was coming up and this lady was noing down, and she was
dressed in white, and she get shu hair, so she told me as shie was
coming, she was holding something like an umbrella. and as 1 was
coming vp, and we met, she said, ta call kFalagmakani. Then on
top right where the Mormon church is, I saw the man, coming, and
I was passing him and he was in white suit, and he *old me to
call FERichard. So I came to here, by this area, my Grandmas
clace, and 1 wo¥e up. When 1 woke up, vou know, 1 tell from the
bed, I fell cut, and hurt my stamach.

M: You were hapai”

1 And the bed was low, so I gct up and steced up and then sat
down, thinking, gee, how come this kind, I <saw this laay, and I
study my dream. I imagine how my grandmother sa:d what she saw
how her mother was, the last time she saw har aother. The 1ady
iz tall, and has ehu hair.

2 i Faiulani "= mother?

B Yes, that is kKawel@. She had ehu hair. And her father is
short man, nrot tall, a small man. That was him. Wher I thought,
who 1s this lady, who 1= this man, I heven’'t =se=n them before.
But f-om the description of my Srandmotnere, I knew who it waz=.
So 1 gathesred that nane, that was a familv, i heard my
Grandmother say that was a family name, and so unigu=, they gave
me the Haw2iian name and the English name. Richard Kalaemal.an:i.
50 1 got up, and when my father got up I told him, and he said,
that 15 phama nams. i saigs, vea 1 heard my grandmother say,
mention abcut the name. This i1s @my third sen, fourth child.

I was living here with my father. When we had Caroi  we movec to
waimea, my husband had jobk with contractor. Two vears. And
Louise was here with my mother. =0 I had only these three boys
with me and Carol.

M: So kKalaemakani is chana with yvou folks?

=% Through my mother, related to the Ahia family, was a Faimu
famiiv. That name comes from Kz 'u, Kalae. Th= point of the
wind.
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M: Were any of your other children named dream names?

Lz Kaleinani, Kal aemakani , and my second boy Charles
Napuai kawekiu.

M: His dream...?

L: Well, when 1I was sleeping, my father walk inside our room
with this baby no more name, and I heard him call him Charles
Napuaikawekiu. I woke up and he was standing there by the crib,
and calling that name. I sat up and he said we call the child
that. My fathers name is Napuaikawekiu o kailihou. He was named
Kailihou in the beginning, and after we found out this through
the genealogy. When this man George Awai was working with the
state, this property my father had up in the volcano area, and
what my grandfather had done he had jotted down their children
name and it was registered in the state. And my fathers name was
Kailihou. He told me that. He said all the names of these
children is so beautiful, this was the first time I ever heard it
cause my father never mention to us. Maybe it was not for us to
know. So he gave me some information of saome people that live
down here, and I am so glad that I 1learn all of this. My
daughter went to research in Honolulu to find out the genealogy,
and back and forth, contacting all these different people, and
the third circuit court, and he have some records there, where he
[father?] was educated. All written down. So we were glad to
have Russ Apple do about my Grandfather.
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